

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-SIXTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 5, 2012 to July 10, 2013

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
OCTOBER 9, 2013

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2013

a provider of electronic communication service to which a warrant is directed not to notify any other person of the existence of the warrant. The court may issue the order if the court determines that there is reason to believe that notification of the existence of the warrant will have an adverse result.

§644. Exceptions

1. Consent of owner or user. When disclosure of portable electronic device content information is not prohibited by federal law, a government entity may obtain the information without a warrant with the informed, affirmative consent of the owner or user of the portable electronic device concerned, except when the device is known or believed by the owner or user to be in the possession of a 3rd party known to the owner or user.

2. Consent of owner or user not required if content information public. Notwithstanding subsection 1, a government entity may obtain content information without a warrant if the content information is otherwise disclosed by anyone in a publicly accessible domain, including, but not limited to, on the Internet.

3. Emergency. When a government entity cannot, with due diligence, obtain a warrant in time to address an emergency that involves or is believed to involve an imminent threat to life or safety, a government entity may obtain the content information from a portable electronic device without a warrant, and a provider of electronic communication service may disclose such information to the requesting government entity without a warrant.

§645. Use of content information obtained in violation of this subchapter not admissible

Except as proof of a violation of this subchapter, evidence obtained in violation of this subchapter is not admissible in a criminal, civil, administrative or other proceeding.

§646. Violations; injunctive relief

A person damaged as a result of a violation of this subchapter has a cause of action in court against a government entity that fails to comply with the provisions of this subchapter, and the court may award injunctive relief.

See title page for effective date.

**CHAPTER 403
H.P. 9 - L.D. 5**

**An Act To Make Changes to
the Potato Marketing
Improvement Fund**

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 5 MRSA §12004-H, sub-§10-A is enacted to read:

10-A.

Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Committee	Expenses Only	7 MRSA §972-B
---	---------------	---------------

Sec. 2. 7 MRSA §970 is enacted to read:

§970. Definitions

As used in this article, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms have the following meanings.

1. Board. "Board" means the Maine Potato Board established in Title 36, section 4603.

2. Committee. "Committee" means the Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Committee under section 972-B.

3. Fund. "Fund" means the Potato Marketing Improvement Fund established in Title 10, section 1023-N.

Sec. 3. 7 MRSA §972-A, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 335, §3, is repealed.

Sec. 4. 7 MRSA §972-B is enacted to read:

§972-B. Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Committee

1. Members. The Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Committee, as established in Title 5, section 12004-H, subsection 10-A, consists of:

A. The commissioner or the commissioner's designee; and

B. Six members appointed by the board, 2 of whom must represent the processing sector of the potato industry, 2 of whom must represent the seed sector of the potato industry and 2 of whom must represent the tablestock sector of the potato industry.

2. Duties. The committee shall:

A. Advise the board on the development and implementation of programs and activities that improve the economic viability of the potato industry;

B. Advise the board concerning the funding and expenditures of the fund; and

C. Make recommendations to the board on authorized uses of the fund and activities relating to the fund other than activities relating to the processing of loan applications or the servicing and administration of loans.

Sec. 5. 7 MRSA §973-A, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 125, §3, is amended to read:

§973-A. Administration of Potato Marketing Improvement Fund

The ~~commissioner board~~ shall administer the ~~Potato Marketing Improvement Fund established under Title 10, section 1023-N fund.~~

Sec. 6. 7 MRSA §974-A, sub-§1, ¶D, as amended by PL 2005, c. 335, §4, is further amended to read:

D. Other terms and conditions prescribed by rule by the ~~commissioner board~~ upon consultation with the ~~board committee~~.

Sec. 7. 7 MRSA §974-A, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2001, c. 125, §4, is further amended to read:

2. State loan interest rate. The interest rate for state loans is 5%. Loans current on April 21, 1988 must be renegotiated to an interest rate of 5%.

A fee for administrative costs, which must be at a rate set by rule by the ~~commissioner upon consultation with the Potato Marketing Improvement Committee board~~ but that may not exceed 1% of the loan, must be charged on all loans made for projects; the total cost of which exceeds \$50,000. This fee must be deposited in the ~~Potato Marketing Improvement Fund fund.~~

Sec. 8. 7 MRSA §974-A, sub-§3 is enacted to read:

3. Approval of loans and grants. The ~~commissioner~~ has authority to approve all loans and grants ~~from the fund.~~

Sec. 9. 7 MRSA §976, as amended by PL 2005, c. 335, §6, is further amended to read:

§976. Aroostook County office

The ~~department board~~ shall maintain or arrange for the maintenance of an office in Aroostook County located in a town most convenient to the largest number of potential users of the ~~Potato Marketing Improvement Fund~~ and sufficiently close to any local office of the board as to foster a close working relationship and provide a convenience to farmers who wish to visit both agencies ~~fund~~. This office must be

staffed by one or more business development specialists ~~whose responsibilities are primarily responsible for work associated with the fund as well as other activities~~ as defined by the ~~department board~~. The business development specialists shall ~~must~~ be available in the Aroostook County office on a regular basis.

Should the performance of the functions of the business development specialists be contracted for, this contract must be made by the ~~agency managing the fund board~~ and must be awarded through competitive bidding.

Sec. 10. 7 MRSA §977, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 125, §5, is amended to read:

§977. Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Operating Account

There is established a Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Operating Account. This account draws funds from the ~~Potato Marketing Improvement Fund established in Title 10, section 1023-N fund~~ on a periodic basis to be determined by the ~~department board~~ to cover the costs of administering the fund and any grants made.

Sec. 11. 10 MRSA §1023-N, first ¶, as amended by PL 2005, c. 335, §7 and PL 2011, c. 657, Pt. W, §6, is further amended to read:

There is created a fund known as the Potato Marketing Improvement Fund, referred to in this section as "the fund." The fund must be deposited with and maintained by the authority to be used solely for investment in the Maine potato industry. The fund must be administered by the ~~Commissioner of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry in accordance with Title 7, chapter 103, subchapter 10 Maine Potato Board, established in Title 36, section 4603 and referred to in this section as "the board," and the Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Committee, established in Title 5, section 12004-H, subsection 10-A.~~ All money received by the authority from any source for the development and implementation of improved storage, packing and marketing and programs and activities that improve the economic viability of the potato industry must be credited to the fund. Any money credited to the fund from the issuance of bonds on behalf of the State for agricultural development may be used only for the purposes of state loans as prescribed by Title 7, section 974-A to provide assistance to potato farmers for the design, construction, improvement, support and operation of storage, packing and marketing facilities; for programs and activities that improve the economic viability of the potato industry; and to pay the administrative costs of processing loan applications and servicing and administering the fund and loans and grants made therein, to the extent that the costs exceed the fee for administrative costs established by Title 7, section 974-A, subsection 2. At the discretion of the Commissioner of Agriculture, Con-

servation and Forestry, the authority shall make payments directly to the board, which shall use those payments to implement the requirements of this section. During any period that the commissioner has authorized direct payments from the authority to the board, the authority shall make written annual reports to the commissioner and the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over agriculture, conservation and forestry matters detailing the amounts of payments to the board and the dates payments were made and detailing the expenditure of those payments. Repayment of these the loans and interest on the loans must be credited to the fund to be available for making additional state loans for the same purposes, except that any interest earned on the cash balance of the fund may be used for the grants authorized by Title 7, section 975-A. In order to provide additional amounts for loans, the Commissioner of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry commissioner, at the commissioner's discretion upon consultation with the board, may take such actions and enter into such agreements as may be necessary to sell or assign up to \$2,000,000 in the aggregate principal amount of loans and undivided interests in a pool of loans and assign or pledge any mortgage or other security to the authority, under the terms and conditions the commissioner considers advisable upon consultation with the board. The assignment and related transactions may not result in indebtedness of the State. The proceeds of the sale or assignment must be credited to the fund and used for the purposes authorized in this section.

Sec. 12. 10 MRSA §1023-N, 2nd ¶, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 125, §6 and amended by PL 2011, c. 657, Pt. W, §5, is further amended to read:

A purchaser of a modern storage facility that was previously financed with a state loan from the fund may receive a loan under the conditions of this section. Mortgages obtained from the fund may be assumed by subsequent purchasers of the property. The Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry board shall adopt rules concerning the purchase of existing buildings.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 404

H.P. 360 - L.D. 541

An Act To Amend the Laws Governing Complimentary Hunting, Trapping and Fishing Licenses for Disabled Veterans

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 12 MRSA §10853, sub-§4, ¶C, as enacted by PL 2003, c. 414, Pt. A, §2 and affected by c. 614, §9, is amended to read:

C. Has a service-connected disability evaluated at: 50% or more.

(1) ~~One hundred percent; or~~

(2) ~~Seventy percent or more as a result of honorable military service and who has served in a combat zone during any armed conflict in which participants were exposed to war risk hazards as defined in 42 United States Code, Section 1711 (b).~~

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 405

H.P. 588 - L.D. 837

An Act To Clarify the Laws Establishing the Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

PART A

Sec. A-1. 2 MRSA §6, sub-§3, as amended by PL 2011, c. 657, Pt. Y, §2, is further amended to read:

3. Range 89. The salaries of the following state officials and employees are within salary range 89:

Director, Bureau of General Services;

Director, Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations;

State Budget Officer;

State Controller;

Director, ~~Division~~ Bureau of Forestry;

Director, Governor's Office of Policy and Management;

Director, Energy Resources Office;

Director of Human Resources;

Director, ~~Division~~ Bureau of Parks and ~~Public~~ Lands; ~~and~~

Director of the Governor's Office of Communications;

Director, Bureau of Agriculture, Food and Rural Resources; and

Director, Bureau of Resource Information and Land Use Planning.